
1 
 

                                                   MINUTES 

                           General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                10:00 a.m. Thursday, April 11, 2019 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters @ 10:00 a.m. 
Members present: 
 

Attendee Name  Title  Status 

Brian Masters  Chair  Present 

Russ Arcand  Vice Chair  Present 

Dean Johansen  Supervisor  Present 

Larry Jepsen  Supervisor  Present 

Chris Nelson  Supervisor  Present 

     

Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Nick Osborne, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, 
Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Steve Geiger, Interim Land Information 
Director; David Vollendorf, Interim Information Technology Director; Emil Norby, Highway 
Commissioner; Supervisor Mike Prichard, and members of the public.   
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda  
Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the agenda as published. Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to 
approve agenda. Chair Masters declared that Item #16: Updates Regarding Big Butternut Lake Dam 
would be struck from the agenda‐ closed session will not be held. Chair Masters called for a voice vote 
on said motion to approve the agenda with said changes. Motion to approve the agenda carried by 
unanimous voice vote.   
   
Approval of Minutes   
Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the minutes of the March 14, 2019 meeting as published. 
Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to approve the minutes. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. 
Motion to approve the minutes of the March 14, 2019 meeting carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment ‐ No Public comment was received by committee. 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members – Information was 
received from Supervisor Johansen regarding implementing a committee report form for use at the 
County Board meetings.   

Committee received follow‐up information from Interim IT Director Dave Vollendorf regarding 
audiovisual recording and broadcasting of meetings. An employee that works for the Highway 
Department has expressed interest in recording the meetings. The Sheriff’s Department has a video 
camera available for use. A possible trial run is planned for the May County Board meeting.   

Committee received a follow‐up report and findings from Administrator Osborne regarding DNR 
exemption and future expenses in regard to trails. An outside attorney opinion indicated pay back of 
federal funding would be likely. The County has reached out to Congressman Duffy’s office to try to get 
an accurate payback figure from the State. 

  



2 
 

 

 

Committee received a report and information regarding development of the new Fairgrounds 
Management Agreement (Memorandum of Understanding) from Highway Commissioner Norby. 
Corporation Counsel and Commissioner Norby are developing the updated Memorandum of 
Understanding.  

The Committee received an update regarding the fairgrounds analysis. A recent meeting with Cedar 
Corporation and the Fair Society discussed the scope of the project, with follow‐up meetings on 4/24/19 
to obtain input from various fair groups and determine scope of analysis of fairground facilities. 
Completion of the fairgrounds analysis is expected by sometime in July.  

Committee received information and updates regarding the Greenway Property from Administrator 
Osborne. Greenway is currently in receivership. Purchase of the property is under consideration by the 
Village of Turtle Lake. 

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding costing of fees for services 
charged to outside agencies and the process of how fees are determined annually. 

The committee discussed recommendations regarding reconsideration of Resolution No. 18‐19: 

Resolution to Adopt the Polk County Plan for Library Service 2019 – 2024.  Chairman Masters called 

upon John Thompson, Representative from Indianhead Federated Library System to provide information 

regarding the Plan for Library Service for 2019 to 2024 to the committee. Committee received 

information regarding the 2019 to 2024 Plan for Library Service from Supervisor Prichard.  

Chair Masters called for a motion regarding Resolution No. 18‐19 

Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to recommend Resolution No. 18‐19 to the County Board for passage. 

Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to recommend Resolution No. 18‐19 to the 

County Board for passage carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding Rules of Order, committee 

duties, responsibilities and assigned functions. A resolution addressing amendments to the Rules of 

Order will be addressed by the Executive Committee and moved to County Board meeting for 

consideration. 

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding the committee agenda process 

and specific deadlines for submitting agenda items. A reminder for agenda items will go out on Friday 

(three days before the agenda deadline). Committee agenda items should be submitted as early as 

possible or on Wednesday by noon a week before the scheduled meeting. Committee Chairs will have a 

role in finalizing the agenda. 

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding the proposal from Renewable 

World Energies for the Clam Falls Dam. Polk County received an offer in writing from Renewable World 

Energies regarding the Clam Falls Dam. Administrator Osborne reported concerns the Environmental 



3 
 

Services Committee has regarding the sequence of the Renewable World Energies offer, believing that 

the stability study of the Clam Falls Dam should be completed before Polk County would consider any 

ownership of the dam. General Government committee requested that a Committee of the Whole 

discussion be held regarding the Clam Falls Dam at the May Board of Supervisors meeting. 

Committee received information from Chair Masters regarding discussion with Mayor Carlson relating to 

the Tourism Council and Memorandum of Understanding with City of St Croix Falls. 

Working Session to Develop 2019 Committee Work Plan:  

Pending items:  Lime Quarry Analysis – June 

Add items remaining from 2017 work plan to 2019 Work Plan  

Items for next agenda:   

Next meeting: May 9, 2019 @ 10:00 a.m.  

Laptop/IT Discussion and Videoing of Board meetings 

Strategic Planning 

Work plan 

Items from 2017 Work Plan 

Report/discussion regarding possibility of changing boardroom to West Conference Room 

 

Adjourn 

 

Chair Masters called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Arcand/Nelson) to adjourn. Chair Masters called 
for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Meeting adjourned 
11:41a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

Sharon Jorgenson 

County Clerk  

 

 

 



PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Thursday, April 11, 2019 at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
Materials: March 14, 2019 Minutes, Resolution 18-19 to Adopt The Polk County 
Plan for Library Service 2019-2024, Proposal for Clam Falls Dam from Renewable 
World Energies, Tourism Documents 
1. Call to order –Chair Masters 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for March 14, 2019 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members  
6. Follow up Regarding Audio Visual Recording and Broadcasting of Meetings  
7. Discussion and Follow up Findings Regarding DNR Exemption and Future 

Expenses Regarding – Report and Discussion   
8. Fairgrounds Management – Report and Discussion on Development of New 

Agreement 
9. Discussion/Update Regarding Greenway Property 
10. Costing of Fees for Services Charged to Outside Agencies – Discussion, Policy 

Review and Recommendation  
11. Discussion/Recommendation Resolution 18-19 Resolution to Adopt the Polk 

County Plan for Library Service 2019-2024 
12. Review Rules of Order, Committee Duties, Responsibilities,  and Assigned 

Functions  
13. Review of Committee Agenda Process 
14. Discussion of Renewable World Energies Proposal for Clam Falls Dam   
15. Tourism: Review Memorandum of Understanding and Budget Appropriations 
16. Updates Regarding Big Butternut Lake Dam 

** CLOSED SESSION** on matter noticed in #16 above: 

Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute § 19.85(1)(g), the Committee may convene 
in closed session for the purpose of conferring with legal counsel for Polk 
County who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy that the 
Committee may recommend to the County Board for adoption with respect 
to anticipated litigation in which the County is or is likely to become 
involved. 
 
Following the closed session the Committee will convene in open session to 
make an announcement on matters acted upon in closed session and to 
take up for consideration and recommendation or action those subject 
matters noticed for consideration or action on this meeting notice for open 
session or closed session herein. 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   

17. Working Session to Develop 2019 Committee Work Plan 
18. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
19. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to 
attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 hours in advance 
of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 
 
    



1 
 

                                                   MINUTES 
                           General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                10:00 a.m. Thursday, March 14, 2019 
 

Meeting called to order by Vice Chair Arcand @ 10:03 a.m. 
Members present: 
 

Attendee Name Title Status 

Brian Masters Chair Absent 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 

Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 

Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 

   
Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Nick Osborne, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, 
Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Debbie Peterson, Buildings/Parks Director; 
Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner; Malia Malone, Corporation Counsel; and member of the press.   
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda  
Vice Chair Arcand called for a motion to approve the agenda as published. Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to 
approve agenda. Vice Chair Arcand called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to approve the 
agenda as published carried by unanimous voice vote.   
  
Approval of Minutes   
Vice Chair Arcand called for a motion to approve the minutes of the December 13, 2018 meeting as 
published. Motion (Jepsen/Nelson) to approve the minutes. Vice Chair Arcand called for a voice vote on 
said motion. Committee noted for the record that the meeting date scheduled for January 10, 2019 as 
documented in the December 13, 2018 minutes was cancelled. Motion to approve the minutes of 
December 13, 2018 meeting carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment - No Public comment was received by committee. 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members – No information was 
received from Supervisors regarding items on the agenda.   

Committee engaged in discussion with Information Technology staff regarding audio visual recording 
and broadcasting of meetings. The committee received information from Interim IT Director Vollendorf 
regarding equipment needed and estimated cost. Supervisor Nelson suggested possible resources for 
assistance with videotaping meetings, including:  enlisting help from WITC, Unity students, or County 
staff. The videographer who records the City of Amery meetings is also able to assist the County with 
suggestions/tips. Vice Chairman Arcand addressed Administrator Osborne regarding suggestions for 
follow up and options regarding videotaping meetings. Administrator Osborne will follow up and report 
back to the committee.  

Administrator Osborne addressed the committee regarding moving closed session items to the next 
items addressed on the agenda due to Court hearings that Corporation Counsel has to be in attendance 

  



2 
 

at. Vice Chairman Arcand declared agenda items 10, 11, and 12 would be addressed next and called on 
Corporation Counsel Malone to provide information to the Committee.  

Corporation Counsel Malone declared that closed session would not be held as litigation update would 
occur in open session. 

Corporation Counsel Malone provided information regarding the three notice of claims listed on the 
agenda: Regarding the Notice of Claim from Public Administration Associates; Polk County has 120 days 
to disallow that claim no action is needed by committee at this time.  

Corporation Counsel Malone provided information that the Notice of Claim from Friends of Stower 
Seven Lakes State Trail will most likely be moot due to recent action by the County Board 

Corporation Counsel Malone provided information regarding the Notice of Claim/legal action from Peter 
Henry v. Board of Supervisors, Case #19CV41.  An answer and affirmative defenses were filed. The case 
was recently assigned to St. Croix County Judge Vlack from St Croix County and may likely be moot or 
dismissed due to recent action by the County Board.  

Committee received a report and information regarding development of the new Fairgrounds 
Management Agreement from Highway Commissioner Norby. Development of the updated 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Fairgrounds Society is in progress.  

The committee discussed recommendations regarding reconsideration of Resolution No. 93-18 to 
appropriate sufficient funding for the analysis of the fairgrounds. (Resolution No. 93-18: Resolution 
Clarifying the Fairground Grandstand Capital Improvement Process).  Vice Chairman Arcand called upon 
Highway Commissioner Norby to provide information regarding the need for reconsideration of 
Resolution No. 93-18 to the committee.  

Highway Commissioner Norby recommended the committee bring Resolution No. 93-18 back to County 
Board for reconsideration and amend the funding amount on line 50 of the Resolution from $15,000 to 
$35,000 to provide sufficient funding for a complete fairgrounds needs analysis.  

Motion (Jepsen/Johansen) to recommend to the County Board reconsideration of Resolution No. 93-18 
to amend the funding amount from $15,000 to $35,000.00 on line 50 to provide sufficient funding for 
the fairgrounds needs analysis. 

Vice Chair Arcand called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Committee received information regarding the new proposal of Northwestern Wisconsin Electric 
Company to transfer Clam Falls Dam from Administrator Osborne. Town of Clam Falls has been 
contacted by Northwestern Wisconsin Electric Company regarding the Clam Falls Dam and would offer 
some support funding expenses of the dam. 

Supervisor Johansen inquired as to possibility of obtaining an exemption from the DNR for upkeep of the 
dam. Administrator Osborne will follow up to get more information regarding costs, future expenses, 
etc., on the Clam Falls Dam and report back to the committee.   



3 
 

Administrator Osborne reported that the Community Services Division is experiencing a marked increase 
in out of home placements due to drug use.  Resulting budget overages that will be reported back to the 
committee as more information is known.  

Develop 2019 Committee Work Plan:  

Committee requested Administrator Osborne assist with development of work plan  

Pending items:  Lime Quarry Analysis –May or June 

Tourism – Review MOU with tourism and budget appropriations 

Review Rules of Order and areas that committees are responsible for 

Items for next agenda:   

Costing information- Review of County Policy developing hourly rates and cost of services for billing 
outside agencies 

Greenway Property update/discussion 

Next meeting: April 11, 2019 @ 10:00 a.m.  
 
Adjourn 
 
Vice Chair Arcand called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to adjourn. Vice Chair 
Arcand called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Meeting adjourned 10:55 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  
 

 



 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
2019 WORK PLAN 

Date Scheduled Agenda Items Program Evaluation and Upcoming 
Issues 

January Finalize 2019 Work Plan  

February   

March   

April   

May Financial Analysis Lime Quarry 

Financial Analysis – Recycling Center 

Consideration of County Board priorities 
in General Government 

June   

July Annual reports 

Annual Audit Results 

Governor’s Budget and impact on 
government programs 

August Review and recommendations on fee 
schedule 

 

September Annual budget review – County Board 
Budget development/recommendation 

 

October Annual budget and budget amendment 
recommendations 

 

November Budget technical amendments  

December Develop 2020 work plan  

 

Issues noted on 2017 Work Plan addendum:   

Review Lease Structure    Capital Improvement Planning 
Paper Reduction    IT Developments and Innovation 
Government Center Security   Accounts Receivable 
Customer Service    Succession Planning  
Cash Handling     Employment Issues and trends 
Funding outside agencies 






















